

Memorandum

TO: SUNHINE REFORM TASK FORCE

MEMBERS

FROM: Dan McFadden

SUBJECT: PUBLIC MEETING DRAFT #2

DATE: September 15, 2006

Staff has prepared the second draft of "Public Meetings" section (see attached). Sections 1.2 thru 2.4 are edited to reflect intent and specific direction by the Task Force. Sections 2.5(2.7) thru 2.13(2.15) have not been reviewed by the Task Force and edits are limited to text movements.

You will find three documents attached:

- 1) clean draft of the public meeting section,
- 2) red line draft of the public meeting section, and
- 3) list of the "Public Reform" proposals cross referenced to their related provisions.

Staff hopes those revisions are helpful. We look forward to finishing the Public Meeting (Section 2) on Thursday, September 21, 2006. Please being this document and the copy of referrals that pertain to Public Meetings.

Thank you,

Dan McFadden.

Cha	pter	,			

Draft "Master" Sunshine Ordinance

art 1	Purpose		
Part 2	Publi	c Meetings	
	2.1	<u>Definition</u>	
	2.2	Meetings to be Open and Public: Application of Brown Act	
	2.3	Time and Place for Meetings	
	2.4	Notice and Agenda Requirements	
	2.5	Notice Requirements	
	2.6	Special Meetings	
	2.7	Barriers to Attendance Prohibited	
	2.8	Recording and Photography	
	2.9	Public Testimony and Written Statement	
	2.10	<u>Minutes</u>	
	2.11	Public Comment by members of Policy Bodies	
	2.12	<u>Conflict Disclosures</u>	
	2.13	Senior Staff Meetings Open to Public	
Part 3 Part 4 Part 5 Part 6 Part 7	Publi Publi Tech Enfoi	ed Sessions c Information and Outreach c Records nology reement	
Part 8	Eunc	s and Conduct	

Part 2

Public Meetings

2.1. Definitions

The following definitions used in this chapter have the meanings set forth below.

2.1.010 City.

"City" means the City of San Jose, California.

2.1.020 City staff.

"City staff" means all employees of Charter appointees.

2.1.030 Council staff.

"Council staff" means all employees of the City Council and the Mayor.

2.1.040 Policy body.

"Policy body" means:

- A. The City Council, Board of the City Redevelopment Agency and commissions, committees, boards or other bodies of the City Council or City Redevelopment Agency, whether permanent or temporary, decision making or advisory, created by charter, ordinance, resolution or other formal action of the City Council or Board of the City Redevelopment Agency.¹
- B. Committees comprised of City council staff that constitute a quorum of the City Council.²

2.1.050 Ancillary body.

"Ancillary body" means:

- A. Committees or other bodies created by the Mayor, a City Councilmember, the Mayor's Chief of Staff or the Mayor's Budget and Policy Director that meets regularly to advise on fiscal, economic or policy issues.³
- B. Any group assigned by a policy body or the Mayor to meet with residents or community groups to obtain information that would result in a report or recommendation from the group back to the policy body or the Mayor for action by the policy body or the Mayor.⁴
- C. To the extent not inconsistent with state or federal law, any entity that owns, operates or manages any property in which the City or City Redevelopment Agency has or will have an ownership interest,

¹ This definition tracks the language of the Brown Act but modifies it to be specific to San Jose and what staff understands to be the intent of the Sunshine Reform Task Force (SRTF). (Government Code Section 54952(b).)

² Staff understands that the intent of the SRTF was to omit from the definition of policy body any group comprised solely of City employees.

³ The City Manager and department heads are omitted from this version and Council members added - there was no discussion of the SRTF's intent about these persons.

⁴ Department heads are omitted from this version. Please also recall Bob Brownstein's concern about this definition [need to review meeting to articulate his concerns].

- including a mortgage, and on which property the entity performs a governmental function or service. ⁵
- D. Ancillary body does not include any committee or body consisting solely of City staff.⁶

2.1.060 Meetings.

"Meeting" means:

- A. A congregation of a majority of the members of a policy body at the same time and place to discuss or deliberate any matter that is within the jurisdiction of the City. A meal gathering of a policy body before, during or after a meeting of the policy body is part of that meeting and shall be conducted only under circumstances that permit public access to hear and observe the discussion. Such meetings shall not be conducted in restaurants or other locations where public access is possible only by making a purchase or some other payment.⁷
- B. Any use of direct communication, personal intermediaries, or technological devices that is employed by a majority of the members of a policy body to develop a collective concurrence as to action to be taken on any item by the members of a policy body is prohibited.⁸
- C. Meeting does not include: 910
 - Individual contacts or conversations between a member of a
 policy body and another person that do not convey to the
 member of the policy body the views or positions of other
 members of the policy body upon the subject matter of the
 contact or conversation and in which the member of the policy
 body does not solicit or encourage the restatement of the
 views of the other members of the policy body.

⁵ Staff is not clear about the SRTF's intent about what types of entities are intended to be captured with the following definition: "any entity that is the recipient of a majority of any city-collected tax or assessment."

⁶ Section 2.3(A)(3) in the Dan Pulcrano draft about "social, recreational or ceremonial occasions" has been omitted because such occasions are better addressed in the definition of meetings (see below). Section 2.3(A)(4) in the Dan Pulcrano draft has been omitted because staff understands that the intent of the SRTF was to omit from the definition of ancillary body any group comprised solely of City employees.

⁷ The second sentence was moved from section 2.1(3)(c) in the Dan Pulcrano draft because it made

⁸ This new section combines former Sections 2.1(3)(a) and (b) of the Dan Pulcrano draft and tracks the language of the Brown Act which is more clear and concise and encompasses the intent of the SRTF.

⁹ This section is now part of Section 2.1.060(B).

¹⁰ This section is now part of Section 2.1.060(B).

- 2. The attendance of a majority of the members of a policy body at a regional, state or national conference, or at a meeting organized to address a topic of local community concern and open to the public, provided that a majority of the members of a policy body do not discuss any item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the policy body.
- 3. The attendance of a majority of the members of a policy body at a purely social, recreational or ceremonial occasion ¹¹, provided that a majority of the members do not discuss any item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the policy body.
- 4. The attendance of a majority of the members of a policy body at an open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of the policy body, provided that the members of the policy body who are not members of the standing committee attend only as observers or as members of the public. 12

2.2 <u>Meetings to be Open and Public: Application of Brown Act</u> 13 14 15 16 17 18 192021 222324

All meetings of any policy body must be open and public and governed by the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Sections 54950 et. seq.) and of this chapter. In case of inconsistent requirements under the Brown Act and this chapter, the requirement, which would result in greater or more expedited public access, will apply.

2.3 <u>Time and Place for Meetings²⁵</u>

2.3.010 Policy Bodies

A. Each policy body, except for policy bodies that do not meet regularly,

¹¹ This clause is omitted because members of a policy body are already prohibited in Section B from communicating at a social, recreational or ceremonial occasion to develop a collective concurrence as to action to be taken on any item by the members of a policy body.

¹² This sentence was moved up to Section 2.1.060(A).

¹³ This section is now part of the Definitions section.

¹⁴ This section is now part of the Definitions section.

¹⁵ This section is now in Section 2.3.020(B).

¹⁶ This section is now in the Notice and Agenda Requirements section.

¹⁷ This section is now in Section 2.3.020(A).

¹⁸ This section is now in the Notice and Agenda Requirements section.

¹⁹ This section is now in Section 2.3.020(B).

This section is now in the Public Testimony section.

²¹ This section is unnecessary since it is clear spectators may just observe.

²² This section is unnecessary since ancillary body is already defined.

²³ The first sentence of this section (with some modification) is in the Definitions section. The second sentence should be in the Public Records section.

²⁴ Milpitas, Section I-310-2.20

²⁵ San Francisco, Section 67.6, excludes special meeting provisions.

- must establish, by whatever rule is required for the conduct of business by that body, the time and place for holding regular meetings.
- B. If a regular meeting would otherwise fall on a holiday, it will instead be held on the next business day, unless otherwise rescheduled in advance. If a meeting must be canceled, continued or rescheduled for any reason, notice of such change must be provided to the public as soon as is reasonably possible, including posting of a cancellation notice in the same manner as described in Section 2.
- C. All regular and special meetings of policy bodies must be held within the City of San José unless:
 - 1. Otherwise required by state or federal law or court order.
 - It is necessary to inspect real property or personal property which cannot be brought conveniently within the territory of the City of San José.
 - It is necessary to meet with residents residing on property outside
 of the jurisdiction of the City but owned by the City or to meet with
 residents of another jurisdiction to discuss actions of the policy body
 that affect those residents.
- D. If, because of fire, flood, earthquake or other emergency, it would be unsafe to meet at the regular meeting place, meetings may be held for the duration of the emergency at some other place specified by the policy body. The change of meeting site shall be announced, by the most rapid means of communication available at the time, in a notice to the local media who have requested written notice of special meetings pursuant to Section_____. Reasonable attempts must be made to contact others about the change in meeting location.

2.3.020 Ancillary Bodies

- A. If an ancillary body elects to hold regular meetings, it must establish, by whatever rule is used by that body for the conduct of its business, the time and place for holding such regular meetings.
- B. All meetings of ancillary bodies must be accessible to individuals upon inquiry and to the extent possible consistent with the facilities in which they occur. The meetings need not be conducted in any particular space for the accommodation of members of the public, although members of the public must be permitted to observe, consistent with legal and practical restrictions on occupancy. 2627

 $^{^{\}rm 26}\,$ This section is now in the Notice and Agenda Requirements section.

²⁷ This section is now in the Notice and Agenda Requirements section.

Notice and Agenda Requirements 28 29 30 31 2.4

2.4.010 **Policy Bodies**

A. Agenda Posting

- Each policy body must designate posting locations for notices and agendas required by this chapter. At a minimum, each policy body must post notices and agendas at a place that is freely accessible to members of the public 24 hours per day and on the City's public access website.
- 2. At least 10 calendar days before a regular meeting, a policy body must post an agenda for the meeting. The agenda must identify the policy body conducting the meeting, specify the time and location of the meeting, contain a meaningful description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting and specify the proposed action for each item or state that the item is for discussion only. A description is meaningful if it is sufficiently clear and specific to alert a person of average intelligence and education whose interests are affected by the item that he or she may have reason to attend the meeting or seek more information on the item. The description should be concise and written in plain, easily understood English and must identify all documents that will be provided to the policy body in connection with an agenda item.

B. Staff Reports and Council Memorandums

- All staff reports and other supporting documents related to the items on the agenda for a regular meeting must be posted on the City's public access website or available in the Office of the City Clerk[S1], and made available for inspection and copying 10 calendar days before a regular meeting.
- For items of business to be transacted or discussed is for an expenditure of \$1 million or more, in which case the staff reports and other supporting documents must be posted on the City's public access website and made available for inspection and copying 14 calendar days before a regular meeting.
- In the event that staff reports and other supporting documents related to items on the agenda for a regular meeting are not posted

²⁸ This section is already in the Time and Place for Meetings section.

This section is now in the Notice and Agenda Requirements section.

³⁰ A form of this section is now in the Notice and Agenda Requirements section.

³¹ Milpitas, Section I-310-2.30

- on the City's public access website and made available for inspection and copying 6 calendar days before the regular meeting, the item will be deferred.
- 4. Council memos, which may be signed by no more than two councilmembers, must be posted on the City's public access website and made available for inspection and copying 3 calendar days before a regular meeting.
- 5. Not withstanding Subdivision B(3) and B(4), policy bodies may accept staff reports and council memos submitted after the deadline when the conditions described in Section 2.4.010(C)(2) are met.
- 6. Documents related to an item on an agenda that are distributed by a member of the public during discussion of the item at a public meeting must be made available for public inspection immediately, or as soon thereafter as is practicable. No documents from City staff or Council may be distributed any later than set forth in the preceding section.

C. Council Action

- The policy body may only discuss or take action on an item appearing on the posted agenda, except that members of a policy body may respond to statements or questions from members of the public at a meeting by asking a question for clarification, providing a referral to staff or other resources for factual information, or making a request of staff to report back to the policy body at a subsequent meeting concerning the matter raised by such testimony.
- Notwithstanding subdivision (1), the policy body may take action on items of business not appearing on the posted agenda under any of the following conditions:
 - a. Upon a determination by a majority vote of the policy body that an emergency situation exists. An emergency situation is either (a) a work stoppage, crippling activity or other activity that severely impairs public health, safety or both; or (b) a crippling disaster, mass destruction, terrorist act, or threatened terrorist activity that poses peril so immediate and significant that requiring a policy body to provide onehour notice before holding an emergency meeting under this section could endanger the public health, safety or both.
 - b. Upon a good faith, reasonable determination by a two-thirds vote of the body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members

- are present, a unanimous vote of those members present, that the need to take immediate action on the item is so imperative as to threaten serious injury to the public interest if action were deferred to a subsequent special or regular meeting, or that the item is a purely commendatory action.
- c. The item was on an agenda posted pursuant to this chapter for a prior meeting of the body occurring not more than ten calendar days prior to the date action is taken on the item and at the prior meeting the item was continued to the meeting at which action is being taken.

D. Special Meetings

- A presiding officer of a policy body or a majority of members of a
 policy body may call a special meeting with three calendar days
 notice by delivering written notice to each member of the policy
 body and members of the media who have requested written
 notice of special meetings.
- The notice of special meeting may be delivered personally or by mail, email or facsimile and must specify the time and place of the special meeting and the business to be transacted. No other business will be considered at the special meeting.
- 3. Written notice may be dispensed with as to any member who at or before the time the meeting convenes files with the presiding officer or secretary of the policy body a written waiver of notice. Written notice may also be dispensed with as to any member who is actually present at the meeting at the time it convenes.
- 4. Each special meeting must be held at the regular meeting place of the policy body except that the policy body may designate an alternate meeting place, provided that the alternate location is specified in the notice of the special meeting and the notice of the special meeting of the policy body was given at least 10 calendar days before the special meeting. This provision will not apply where the alternative meeting location is located within the same building as the regular meeting place and a notice is posted at the announced meeting location specifying the new location.

E. Agenda Requirements

 Each policy body shall ensure that notices and agendas for regular and special meetings shall include the following notice:

KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE OPEN GOVERNMENT ORDINANCE

(Title of the San Jose Municipal Code)

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review.

FOR MORE INFORMATION ON YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE OPEN GOVERNMENT ORDINANCE OR TO REPORT A VIOLATION OF THE ORDINANCE, CONTACT THE OPEN GOVERNMENT COMMISSION.

Each agenda of a policy body covered by this Open Government Ordinance must include the address, area code and phone number, fax number, email address and contact person for the Open Government Commission and the Internet address of the City's public access Web site. Information on how to obtain a free copy of the Open Government Ordinance shall be included on each agenda.

H. 323334

]. 35

2.4.020 Ancillary bodies.

A. At least 3 days before a meeting, an ancillary body must post notice of a meeting on the City's public access website and master calendar as soon as the meeting is scheduled. Notice of meetings of ancillary bodies must be provided by mail, email or facsimile to each person who has made a written request for notice of such meetings. In addition, the time, place and nature of the meeting must be disclosed upon inquiry by a member of the public.

³² Prevision provision "Agendas of meetings, meeting packets and any other documents on file with the clerk of the policy body in connection with a matter anticipated for discussion or consideration at a public meeting shall be made available to the public for inspection and copying or printing at the office of the policy body before the hearing and be available to the public in sufficient quantities at the hearing commensurate with the anticipated number of people attending the hearing. To the extent possible, such documents shall also be made available through the policy body's Web site. However, this disclosure need not include any material exempt from public disclosure under this ordinance." This section is covered by 2.4.010(C). ³³ This section is covered by 2.4.010(C).

³⁴ This section is moved up to 2.4.010(D).

³⁵ A policy body may charge a duplication fee of one cent per page for a copy of a public record prepared for consideration at a public meeting, unless a special fee has been established. Neither this section nor the California Public Records Act (Government Code sections 6250 et seq.) shall be construed to limit or delay the public's right to inspect any record required to be disclosed by that act, whether or not distributed to a policy body. This section should be in the Public Records section.

B. Any agenda prepared for the meeting of an ancillary body must be provided to any person who requests it, by mail, email or facsimile.

Sections 2.1-2.4 above reviewed by the Task Force and staff. Sections 2.5 – 2.13 below have not been review by the Task Force or staff.

2.5_[S2] Public Notice Requirements 36_[S3]

- A. Any public notice that is mailed, posted or published by a City department, board, agency or commission to residents residing within a specific area to inform those residents of a matter that may impact their property or that neighborhood area, shall be brief, concise and written in plain, easily-understood English.
- B. The notice should inform the residents of the proposal or planned activity, the length of time planned for the activity, the effect of the proposal or activity the location of the Web page to which related documents have been posted and a telephone contact and email address for residents who have questions.
- C. If the notice informs the public of a public meeting or hearing, then the notice shall state that persons who are unable to attend the public meeting or hearing may submit to the City, by the time the proceeding begins, written comments regarding the subject of the meeting or hearing, that these comments will be made a part of the official public record and that the comments will be brought to the attention of the person or persons conducting the public meeting or hearing. The notice should also state the name and address of the person or persons to whom those written comments should be submitted.
- D. When notice is given, as provided in this ordinance, by public policy or advisory bodies, members of the public may submit statements and/or comments regarding any item on those bodies' meeting agendas; those statements or comments shall become public record, regardless of whether their authors are present when the item at issue is discussed. Statements or comments shall be subject to review and consideration by those bodies if submitted before or during the hearing on the item. Statements or comments received within ten business days after the hearing shall go on the public record with a notation as to when it was received.

Special Meetings³⁷ 2.6

- Special meetings of any local body may be called at any time by the presiding A. officer thereof or by a majority of the members thereof. All local bodies calling a special meeting shall provide notice by:
 - 1. posting a copy of the agenda in a location freely accessible to the public at least 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the time of the meeting set forth in the agenda;

³⁶ San Francisco, Section 67.7-1

³⁷ Oakland, Section 2.20.070.

- 2. filing a copy of the agenda and copies of all agenda-related material in the Office of the City Clerk at least 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the time of the meeting set forth in the agenda; and, delivering a copy of the agenda to each member of the local body, to each local newspaper of general circulation, to each agenda subscriber and to each media organization which has previously requested notice in writing, so that a copy of the agenda is received at least 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the time of the meeting set forth in the agenda. Receipt of the agenda shall be presumed upon reasonable proof that delivery was made.
- B. Policy bodies specified in Section 2.2 shall, in addition to the noticing requirements of this section, post a copy of the agenda for any special meeting on-line at the local body's website at least 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the time of the meeting set forth in the agenda. Failure to timely post a copy of the agenda online because of software or hardware failure shall not constitute a defect in the notice for a special meeting if the local body complies with all other posting and noticing requirements.
- C. No business other than that set forth in the agenda shall be considered at a special meeting. Each special meeting shall be held at the regular meeting place of the local body except that the local body may designate an alternative meeting location provided that such alternative location is specified in the agenda and that notice pursuant to this Section is given at least ten (10) days prior to the special meeting. This ten (10) day notice requirement shall not apply if the alternative location is within the same building at which regular meetings of the local body occur.
- D. To the extent practicable, the presiding officer or the majority of members of any local body may cancel a special meeting by delivering notice of cancellation in the same manner and to the same persons as required for the notice of such meeting.
- E. Special meetings may not be noticed on the same day as a previously scheduled regular meeting that was not noticed in compliance with this ordinance if the special meeting is called to consider any of the items that were included in the notice for such regular meeting.

2.7 Barriers to Attendance Prohibited 38

A. No policy body shall conduct any meeting, conference or other function in any facility that excludes persons on the basis of actual or presumed class identity or characteristics, or which is inaccessible to persons with physical disabilities, or where members of the public may not be present without making a payment or

³⁸ Milpitas, Section I-310-2.120

purchase. Whenever the City Council, a board or commission, or any committee thereof anticipates that the number of persons attending the meeting will exceed the legal capacity of the meeting room, any public address system used to amplify sound in the meeting room shall be extended by supplementary speakers to permit the overflow audience to listen to the proceedings in an adjacent room or passageway, unless such supplementary speakers would disrupt the operation of a City office.

B. Each policy body that meets in City Hall and televises its meetings, shall provide for participation by members of the public via telephone "bridge lines" or Internet connections for public comment on each item in the same manner as if the member of the public were in actual physical attendance at the meeting. Each policy body subject to this provision may develop reasonable procedures for its implementation.

2.8 Recording and Photography³⁹

- A. Any person attending an open and public meeting of a policy body shall have the right to record the proceedings with an audio or video recorder or a still or motion picture camera, or to broadcast the proceedings, in the absence of a reasonable finding of the policy body that the recording or broadcast cannot continue without such noise, illumination or obstruction of view as to constitute a persistent disruption of the proceedings.
- B. All policy bodies shall audio record each regular and special meeting. Each such audio recording and any audio or video recording of a meeting of any other policy body made at the direction of the policy body shall be a public record subject to inspection pursuant to the California Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250 et seq.) and shall not be erased or destroyed. The audio and/or video record shall be kept indefinitely or as current technology allows. Inspection of any such recording shall be provided without charge on an appropriate play back device made available by the City. Audio records of audio taped meetings shall be provided upon request and payment for the actual cost of the recording. Requests shall be made through the City Clerk.

2.9 Public Testimony and Written Statements⁴⁰

- A. Every agenda for regular meetings shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to directly address a policy body on any item, provided that no action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by Section I-310-2.30(e) of this chapter.
- B. Every agenda for meetings at which action is proposed to be taken on an item shall provide an opportunity for each member of the public to directly address the body concerning that item prior to action thereupon.

³⁹ Milpitas, Section I-310-2.130

⁴⁰ Milpitas, Section I-310-2.140

- C. Each policy body shall adopt a rule providing that each person wishing to speak on an item before the body at a regular or special meeting shall be permitted to be heard once for a maximum of three minutes. However, the Chair of the meeting has discretion to reduce the speaking time in situations where there are a large number of persons who wish to speak on a particular agenda item. Time limits shall be applied uniformly to members of the public wishing to testify. The Chair of the policy body shall accept public testimony in a fair and even-handed way, without manipulation in the order of speakers.
- D. A policy body shall not abridge or prohibit public criticism of the policy, procedures, programs or services of the City, or of any other aspect of its proposals or activities, or of the acts or omissions of the body, on the basis that the performance of one or more public employees is implicated, or on any basis other than reasonable time constraints adopted in regulations pursuant to subdivision (c) of this section.
- E. To facilitate public input, any agenda changes or continuances shall be announced by the presiding officer of a policy body at the beginning of a meeting, or as soon thereafter as the change or continuance becomes known to such presiding officer.
- F. When notice is given, as provided in this ordinance, by public policy or advisory bodies, members of the public may submit statements and/or comments regarding any item on those bodies' meeting agendas; those statements or comments shall become public record, regardless of whether their authors are present when the item at issue is discussed. Statements or comments shall be subject to review and consideration by those bodies if submitted before or during the hearing on the item. Statements or comments received within ten business days after the hearing shall go on the public record with a notation as to when it was received.
- G. Meetings of ancillary bodies need not provide opportunities for comment by members of the public, although the person presiding may, in his or her discretion, entertain such questions or comments from spectators as may be relevant to the business of the gathering.

2.10 Minutes 41

A. The clerk or secretary of each policy body shall record the minutes for each regular and special meeting of the policy body. The minutes shall state the time the meeting was called to order, the names of the members attending the meeting, the roll call vote on each matter considered at the meeting, the time the board or commission began and ended any closed session, the names of the members and the names and titles where applicable, of any other persons

⁴¹ San Francisco, Section 67.16

attending any closed session, a list of those members of the public who spoke on each matter if the speakers identified themselves, whether such speakers supported or opposed the matter, a brief summary of each person's statement during the public comment period for each agenda item and the time the meeting was adjourned. Any person speaking during a public comment period may supply a brief written summary of their comments which shall, if no more than 150 words, be included in the minutes.

The draft minutes of each meeting shall be available for inspection and copying upon request no later than ten working days after the meeting. The officially adopted minutes shall be available for inspection and copying upon request no later than ten working days after the meeting at which the minutes are adopted. Upon request, minutes required to be produced by this section shall be made available in Braille, increased type size or computer-readable file in a commonly used format.

2.11 Public Comment by Members of Policy Bodies⁴²

Every member of a policy body retains the full constitutional rights of a citizen to comment publicly on the wisdom or propriety of government actions, including those of the policy body of which he or she is a member. Policy bodies shall not sanction, reprove or deprive members of their rights as elected or appointed officials for expressing their judgments or opinions, including those which deal with the perceived inconsistency of non-public discussions, communications or actions with the requirements of state or federal law or of this ordinance. The release of specific factual information made confidential by state or federal law including, but not limited to, the privilege for confidential attorney-client communications, may be the basis for a request for injunctive or declaratory relief, of a complaint to the Mayor seeking an accusation of misconduct, or both.

2.12 <u>Conflict Disclosures</u>

At the beginning of each City Council meeting or upon the arrival of the Mayor or Councilmember, the City Attorney shall ask the Mayor and each member of the City Council to disclose any financial or personal conflict with any item on the City Council's agenda. Pursuant to Government Code section _____, if the Mayor or a Councilmember discloses that such a personal financial interest is present, he or she shall publicly identify the conflict or potential conflict in detail sufficient to be understood by the public and shall recuse him or herself from taking action on the item if required to do so by law and leave the meeting room.

2.13 Senior Staff Meetings Open to Public

One senior City staff meeting per month shall be publicly noticed, made open and accessible to the public. Such meeting shall occur during regular business hours.

⁴² San Francisco, Se	ection 67.17
---------------------------------	--------------

9/14/06 st 9/25/06 dp Sheila Tucker 408.535.8115

Provision	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
2.1 Definition of Meetings (Content from Milpitas Ord, Section 2, I-310-2.10.)	There is not a great deal of difference in how the various ordinances define meetings. The Milpitas and San Francisco ordinances describe meetings in the same way, with the exception of a variation in subsections B(1) and B(4)(d) below. The Oakland and Benicia ordinances provide more clarity and specificity within each subsection compared to the Milpitas and San Francisco ordinances, but the general scope is consistent. (Only variations in the ordinances are noted.)
	The ordinances also use different terms for "policy body". For example, Oakland uses the term "local body". Here, in the interest of clarity, we use the term "policy body" throughout.
A. "Meeting" shall mean any of the following:	
A congregation of a majority of the members of a policy body at the same time and place to discuss or deliberate City business.	The Oakland and Benicia ordinances are more specific, clarifying that a meeting is a congregation of a majority of a policy body at which any item within the <u>body's</u> subject matter jurisdiction (as opposed to City business) is heard, discussed, or deliberated. (Oakland Ord., §2.20.020(F)(1); Benicia Ord., §4.04.050(F)(1).) The San Francisco ordinance is more expansive and provides less specificity, stating that a meeting is simply a congregation of a majority of a policy body at the same time and place, without the clarification that it is a congregation of a majority to discuss or deliberate City business. (SF Ord., §67.3(b)(1).)
	Current Practice Consistent with the Brown Act, the City of San Jose defines a meeting to include any congregation of a majority of the members of a policy body at the same time and place to hear, discuss, or deliberate upon any item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the body or the local agency. (Gov't. Code, §54952.2(a).)
2. A series of gatherings, each of which involves less	The Oakland and Benicia ordinances combine this subsection with a variant of the following

<u>Pr</u>	<u>ovision</u>	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
	than a majority of a policy body, to hear, discuss, or deliberate upon any item that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City, if the cumulative result is that a majority of members has become involved in such gatherings.	subsection to address serial meetings in one part. San Jose, following the Brown Act, similarly defines a meeting to encompass serial meetings, as described by the Oakland and Benicia ordinances. (Gov't. Code, §54952.2(b).) Current Practice The Brown Act specifically prohibits any use of direct communication, intermediaries or technological devices by a majority of the members of a legislative body to develop a collective concurrence as to action to be taken. (Gov. Code § 54952.2). Such a series of separate discussions by individual members of a legislative body regarding matters within their jurisdiction without actually coming together and meeting is referred to as a seriatim meeting. This type of prohibited meeting can result from a series of communications of individual members or groups of members that are less than a quorum which then result in involving a majority of the members of the legislative body.
3.	Any other use of personal intermediaries or communications media that could permit a majority of the members of a policy body to become aware of an item of business and of the views or positions of other members with respect thereto, and to negotiate consensus thereon.	The Oakland and Benicia ordinances are more specific as to what conduct is encompassed. They provide that meetings under this subsection are: "Any use of direct communication, personal intermediaries or communications media to cause a majority to become aware of the item of business and of the views or positions of other members with respect thereto, and to negotiate consensus thereon." (Oakland Ord., §2.20.020(F)(2); Benicia Ord., §4.04.050(F)(2).) In contrast, San Francisco and Milpitas use the more ambiguous language that a meeting exists if these communications simply could permit such a result. (SF Ord., §67.3(b)(3).
4.	"Meeting" shall not include any of the following:	
B.	Individual contacts or conversations between a member of a policy body and another person that do not convey to the member the views or positions of other members upon the subject	Oakland and Benicia exclude from meetings any "individual contacts or conversations between a member of a [policy] body and any other person," without the qualifier that these contacts are covered only if the member does not solicit or encourage conveyance of the views of other members. (Oakland Ord., §2.20.020(F)(4)(a); Benicia Ord., §4.04.050(F)(1).)

Pr	rovision_	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
	matter of the contact or conversation and in which the member does not solicit or encourage the restatement of views of the other members.	
C.	The attendance of a majority of the members of a policy body at a regional, statewide or national conference, or at a meeting organized to address a topic of local community concern and open to the public, provided that a majority of the members refrains from using the occasion to collectively discuss the topic of the gathering or any other business within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City.	Oakland and Benicia further state that at conferences, and at social, recreational, educational or ceremonial events, a majority must not discuss business within the <u>body's</u> subject matter jurisdiction (as opposed to the City's subject matter jurisdiction), so as not to trigger the definition of a meeting. (Oakland Ord., §2.20.020(F)(4)(b)-(c); Benicia Ord., §4.04.050(F)(2)-(3).)
D.	•	See above for Oakland and Benicia regarding social, recreational or ceremonial occasions. The language in this subsection comes directly from the San Francisco Ordinance. Oakland and Benicia place the second sentence regarding meal gatherings in the section that defines what constitutes a meeting, which fits more logically than placing it in the section on what does not constitute a meeting. (Oakland Ord., §2.20.020(F)(3); Benicia Ord., §4.04.050(F)(3).)

Provision	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
purchase or some other payment of value.	
E. The attendance of a majority of the members of a policy body at an open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of that body, provided that the members of the policy body who are not	Oakland and Benicia further clarify that the non-committee member must not participate personally or through representatives. (Oakland Ord., §2.20.020(F)(4)(d); Benicia Ord., §4.04.050(F)(4).)
members of the standing committee attend only as observers.	San Francisco's ordinance does not include this provision.
	Current Practice
	This provision is taken from the Brown Act, and thus, also reflects San Jose's practice.
2.2 Definition of Policy Body (Content from Milpitas Ord, Section 2, I-310-2.10(E).)	
"Policy bodies" shall mean the City Council, Redevelopment Agency, standing subcommittees of the City Council, Redevelopment Agency or any Commissions, Panels or ad hoc committees of the City Council, Redevelopment Agency or any Commissions, City created task forces, and all City Commissions or Boards. Policy bodies shall not include a committee that consists solely of employees of the City of San José.	San Francisco also includes any committee or body created by ordinance or resolution of the Board of Supervisors and any advisory board, commission, committee or body "created by the initiative of a policy body." (Section 67.3(d)(3)-(4).) Furthermore, San Francisco includes any "advisory board, commission, committee, or council created by a federal, state or local grant whose members are appointed by city officials, employees or agents." (Section 67.3(d)(7).) The Milpitas Ordinance is broader than all other ordinances as well as the Brown Act in that it includes ad hoc committees of the City Council, rather than limiting the definition to standing committees.
omployeds of the only of our toose.	Benicia and Oakland provide more clarity with respect to what Milpitas terms "City created task forces." These ordinances state that a "policy body" includes, in addition to the City Council and Redevelopment Agency, commissions, boards, task forces and committees which are established by City Charter, ordinance, or by motion or resolution of the City Council or Redevelopment Agency. (Oakland Ord., §2.20.030(E)(2); Benicia Ord., §4.04.050(B)(2).)
	Oakland also provides that "any advisory board, commission or task force created and

<u>Provision</u>	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
	appointed by the Mayor and which exists for longer than a 12-month period" is included. (Section 2.20.030(E)(3).) Benicia adds to that the same bodies "created as a result of Federal, State or local grants" are "policy bodies". (Section 4.04.050(B)(2).)
	Contra Costa County takes a more general approach, simply stating that a "policy body" means the Board of Supervisors or "any permanent or temporary board, committee or commission under the authority of the Board of Supervisors." (Section 25-2.202(a).)
	All ordinances expressly state that committees, congregations or gatherings consisting solely of City employees are not encompassed in the definition of "policy body."
	Current Practice San Jose, defines "policy body" means as: the City Council; Redevelopment Agency Board; boards, commissions, committees or other bodies created by charter, ordinance, resolution or other formal action of a policy body; standing committees of policy bodies; certain entities created by a policy body to exercise lawfully delegated authority; and certain entities which receive funds from the local agency and where the policy body appoints one of its members as a voting member of the board. (Gov't. Code, §54952.)
2.3 Passive Meetings (Content from San Francisco Ord., Sections 67.3(c) and 67.4)	Only the San Francisco, Contra Costa County and Oakland ordinances cover meetings of bodies other than policy bodies, imposing modified notice and other requirements on these other bodies. These ordinances are significantly different from each other in terms of the scope of bodies covered.
	<u>Current Practice</u> There is no similar provision in the Brown Act.
A. "Passive meeting body" shall mean:	Oakland's modified rule apply only to meetings of the governing board of a private entity that owns, operates or manages property in which the City or Redevelopment Agency has or will have an ownership interest and on which property the private entity performs a

<u>Pr</u>	ovision_	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
		governmental function or service. (Section 2.20.040(B).) There is no overlap with the San Francisco ordinance.
1.	Advisory committees created by the initiative of a member of a policy body, the Mayor, a Department Head.	Contra Costa County is more limited in scope. It allows public access to meetings of "permanent advisory committees," which it defines as "a permanent committee created by the County Administrator, or a department head to advise the County Administrator or a department head." (Sections 25-2.202(d) and 25-2.204(d)(2).)
2.	Any group that meets to discuss with or advise the Mayor or any Department Head on fiscal, economic, or policy issues.	See above.
3.	Social, recreational or ceremonial occasions sponsored or organized by or for a policy body to which a majority of the body has been invited.	Contra Costa County's provision is substantially the same.
4.	"Passive meeting body" shall not include a committee that consists solely of employees of the City created by the initiative of a member of a policy body, the Mayor, or a Department Head.	Consistent with this provision in the San Francisco ordinance, Contra Costa County also excludes committees made up entirely of staff.
5.	Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (4) above, "Passive meeting body" shall include a committee that consists solely of employees of the City when such committee is reviewing, developing, modifying, or creating city policies or procedures related to the public health, safety, or welfare or relating to services for the homeless.	Contra Costa County does not provide any exceptions to the exclusion of staff committees.
B.	All gatherings of passive meeting bodies shall be accessible to individuals upon inquiry and to the extent possible consistent with the facilities in which they occur.	Contra Costa County's provision is substantially the same, although more succinct. It simply states that these gatherings "shall be accessible upon inquiry or request to the extent possible consistent with the facilities and the purpose of the gathering. Such gatherings need not be noticed formally, conducted in any particular space open to spectators or provide for comment by spectators." (Section 25-2.204(e).) Oakland includes provisions

<u>Pr</u>	ovision	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
		similar to Contra Costa County's. (Oakland Ord., 2.20.040(B)(2)-(3).)
		Significantly, Contra Costa includes the qualification that such gatherings "may exclude the public if their purpose is to discuss information which is privileged by a specific State or Federal statute." (Section 25-2.204(f).) San Francisco omits this language.
1.	Such gatherings need not be formally noticed, except on the City's website whenever possible, although the time, place and nature of the gathering shall be disclosed upon inquiry by a member of the public, and any agenda actually prepared for the gathering shall be accessible to such inquirers as a public record.	See above. Contra Costa County and Oakland do not specify that the notice must be provided on the City website. It is unclear whether the San Francisco notice requirement is formal or informal and whether it entails such items as timing. Contra Costa County also does not specify that any agenda prepared shall be accessible as a public record. Even without this provision, under state law, the agenda would be a public record.
2.	Such gatherings need not be conducted in any particular space for the accommodation of members of the public, although members of the public shall be permitted to observe on a space available basis consistent with legal and practical restrictions on occupancy	Contra Costa County and Oakland include a substantially similar provision.
3.	Such gatherings of a business nature need not provide opportunities for comment by members of the public, although the person presiding may, in his or her discretion, entertain such questions or comments from spectators as may be relevant to the business of the gathering	Contra Costa County and Oakland include a substantially similar provision.
4.	Such gatherings of a social or ceremonial nature need not provide refreshments to spectators.	Contra Costa County and Oakland do not address this issue.
5.	Gatherings subject to this subsection include the following: advisory committees or other	Contra Costa County is more limited in scope. It allows public access to the following gatherings:

<u>Pr</u>	<u>ovision</u>	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
	multimember bodies created in writing or by the initiative of, or otherwise primarily formed or existing to serve as a non-governmental advisor to, a member of a policy body, the Mayor, the City Administrator, a department head, or any elective officer, and social, recreational or ceremonial	(1) Meetings of "permanent advisory committees," which it defines as "a permanent committee created by the County Administrator, or a department head to advise the County Administrator or a department head." (Sections 25-2.202(d) and 25-2.204(d)(2).) (2) Social, recreational, or ceremonial occasions sponsored by or for the policy body, to which a majority of the body has been invited.
	occasions sponsored or organized by or for a policy body to which a majority of the body has been invited. This subsection shall not apply to a committee which consists solely of employees of the City and County of San Francisco.	Oakland is also more limited in scope. It allows modified public access to meetings of the governing board of a private entity that owns, operates or manages property in which the City or Redevelopment Agency has or will have an ownership interest and on which property the private entity performs a governmental function or service. (Section 2.20.040(B).)
6.	Gatherings defined in subdivision (5) may hold closed sessions under circumstances allowed by this Article.	Contra Costa County and Oakland do not address this issue.
C.	To the extent not inconsistent with state or federal law, a policy body shall include in <i>any</i> contract	Contra Costa County does not address this issue.
	with an entity that owns, operates or manages <i>any</i> property in which the City has or will have an ownership interest, including a mortgage, and on which the entity performs a government function related to the furtherance of health, safety or welfare, a requirement that any meeting of the governing board of the entity to address any matter relating to the property or its government related activities on the property, or performance under the contract or grant, be conducted as provided in subdivision A of this section. Records made available to the governing board relating to	This provision is similar to that in the Oakland ordinance.

<u>Provision</u>	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
such matters shall be likewise available to the	
public, at a cost not to exceed the actual cost up to	
10 cents per page or at a higher actual cost as	
demonstrated in writing to such governing board 2.4 Meetings to be Open and Public; Application of	
Brown Act (Content from Milpitas Ord., Section I-310-2.20 and San Francisco Ord., Section 67.5.)	
All meetings of any policy body shall be open and public, and governed by the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Sections 54950	Benicia and Oakland also include a substantially similar provision. (Benicia Ord., §4.08.010; Oakland Ord., §2.20.050.)
et. seq.) and of this chapter. In case of inconsistent requirements under the Brown Act and this chapter, the requirement, which would result in greater or more expedited public access, shall apply.	Contra Costa County, under this heading, includes other kinds of meetings that are to be "open and public" under the rules set forth in its Ordinance, which overlap some rules under the Brown Act. (Section 25-2.204.) Its modified rules are set forth in Section 25-2.205.
more expedited public deceses, chair apply.	Current Practice
	Meetings of policy bodies in San Jose are open and are public and are governed by the Brown Act. (Gov't. Code, §54953(a).)
2.5 Conduct of Business; Time and Place for Meeting	
(Content from San Francisco Ord., Section 67.6)	
A. Each policy body, except for advisory bodies, shall establish by resolution or motion the time and	Oakland includes a similar provision. (Section 2.20.060(a).)
place for holding regular meetings.	Benicia limits the applicability of this subsection to "every body established by city council ordinance." (Section 4.08.040(A).)
	Milpitas and Contra Costa do not include this provision, but they would be governed by the Brown Act.
	Current Practice
	The Brown Act requires each policy body, except for advisory bodies and standing

blish a time and place for holding regular meetings. (Gov't. Code, 73321 Council Rules of Conduct established time and place for Council
a include different criteria for when a meeting may be held outside of city
a include different criteria for when a meeting may be held outside of city hese ordinances, regular and special meetings shall be held within the by of the following: comply with state or federal law, or attend a judicial or reding to which the policy body is a party; inspect real or personal not conveniently be brought to the city, provided the topic of the meeting rectly related to the real or personal property; participate in meetings or reagency significance that are outside the city; meet outside the city with difficials of the United States or the State of California when a local inpractical, solely to discuss a legislative or regulatory issue affecting the §2.20.060(B); Benicia Ord., § 4.08.040(B).) Costa County do not include a similar provision, but they would be own Act.
ch applies to San Jose, includes a substantially similar provision to that Benicia ordinances. (Gov't. Code, §54954(b).) at if a regular meeting falls on a holiday, the meeting shall be held on the lar meeting day, unless otherwise noticed as a special meeting for at least six days in advance. (Section 4.08.040(D).) Oakland's the same as Benicia's except that Oakland requires five days notice for a
nlii ii ee n

<u>Pr</u>	<u>ovision</u>	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
		Milpitas and Contra Costa County do not include a similar provision.
		Current Practice The Brown Act does not include this specific requirement.
D.	If, because of fire, flood, earthquake or other emergency, it would be unsafe to meet at the regular meeting place, meetings may be held for the duration of the emergency at some other place specified by the policy body. The change of meeting	The section to which the San Francisco ordinance refers, Section 67.6(d)(4) does not exist; thus, it is unclear what meetings the Ordinance intends to encompass in this subsection. For that reason, it is also impossible to determine whether the provisions in other ordinances are comparable.
	site shall be announced, by the most rapid means of communication available at the time, in a notice to the local media who have requested written	Contra Costa County's only reference to notice for "passive access gatherings," as defined in its ordinance, is that such gatherings need not be formally noticed. (Section 25-2.204(e).)
	notice of special meetings pursuant to Government Code Section 54956. Reasonable attempts shall be made to contact others regarding the change in meeting location.	Oakland's ordinance also covers some bodies in addition to policy bodies. With respect to the former, those meetings need not be formally noticed, although the time, place and nature of the gathering must be disclosed upon inquiry and any agenda actually prepared must be made available on request. (Section 2.20.040(B)(1).)
		As previously discussed, the other ordinances and the Brown Act do not include the concept of a passive meeting body.
E.	Meetings of passive meeting bodies as specified in Section 67.6(d)(4) of this article of this article shall be preceded by notice delivered personally or by mail, e-mail, or facsimile as reasonably requested at least 72 hours before the time of such meeting	The section to which the San Francisco ordinance refers, Section 67.6(d)(4) does not exist; thus, it is unclear what meetings the ordinance intends to encompass in this subsection. For that reason, it is also impossible to determine whether the provisions in other ordinances are comparable.
	to each person who has requested, in writing, notice of such meeting. If the advisory body elects to hold regular meetings, it shall provide by	Contra Costa County's only reference to notice for "passive access gatherings," as defined in its ordinance, is that such gatherings need not be formally noticed. (Section 25-2.204(e).)
	bylaws, or whatever other rule is utilized by that	Oakland's ordinance also covers some bodies in addition to policy bodies. With respect to

Provision	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
advisory body for the conduct of its business, for the time and place for holding such regular meetings. In such case, no notice of regular meetings, other than the posting of an agenda pursuant to Section 2.6 (C) of this article in the	the former, those meetings need not be formally noticed, although the time, place and nature of the gathering must be disclosed upon inquiry and any agenda actually prepared must be made available on request. (Section 2.20.040(B)(1).) As previously discussed, the other ordinances and the Brown Act do not include the concept
place used by the policy body which it advises, is required.	of a passive meeting body.
F. If a meeting must be canceled, continued or rescheduled for any reason, notice of such change shall be provided to the public as soon as is reasonably possible, including posting of a cancellation notice in the same manner as described in section 2.5 (C), and mailed notice if sufficient time permits.	The other ordinances do not include this specific requirement.
2.6 Agenda Requirements; Regular Meetings (Content from Milpitas Ord., Section I-310-2.30)	
A. At least 72 hours before a regular meeting, a policy body shall post an agenda containing a meaningful description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting. Agendas shall specify for each item of business the proposed action or a statement the item is for discussion only. In addition, a policy body shall post a current agenda on its Internet website at least 72 hours before a regular meeting.	San Francisco's ordinance is identical. (Section 67.7(a).) Oakland requires 10 day advance notice for regular meetings of City Council, Redevelopment Agency, Board of Port Commissioners, Public Ethics Commission and their standing committees by posting the agenda in a public location and on the appropriate website and filing the agenda with the City Clerk and Oakland main library. (Section 2.20.080(A).) Contra Costa requires "staff material," consisting of agendas of policy body meetings, staff reports and other material prepared or forwarded by staff which provide background information and recommendations regarding agenda items, to be made available to the public 96 hours before a scheduled meeting. (Section 25-2.206(a).)

Provision	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
	Benicia requires 6 day advance notice by posting a copy of the agenda in a public location and on the city's website and filing a copy of the agenda with the City Clerk and the Benicia Public Library no later than 5 days before the date of the meeting. (Section 4.08.050(A).)
	Current Practice The Brown Act requires that at least 72 hours before a regular meeting, the legislative body shall post an agenda containing a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.
B. At least 8 calendar days before a regular City	No other ordinances have any similar provision.
Council meeting, a preliminary agenda shall be posted containing a meaningful description of each item of business to be transacted or	Reform Referrals (Public Information Reform #4, Government Accountability Reform #11, and Government Accountability Reform #4)
discussed at the meeting. These agendas shall specify for each item of business the proposed action or a statement the item is for discussion only. In addition, the preliminary agenda shall	1. A detailed accounting of all City contracts and expenditures of \$1 million or more shall be made available to the City Council and public, on-line, no later than 2 weeks prior to being heard. Otherwise, a 2/3 majority vote of the Council would be required to hear an item that was received less than 2 weeks prior to the hearing.
be posted on the City's Internet website at least	2. City Manager and Department Staff Reports for expenditures of \$1 million or more and
8 calendar days before the regular City Council meeting. City staff shall make a good faith	"Significant Public Interest" agenda items shall provide the following: (a). a new section entitled, "Policy Alternative Recommendations" that lists all the viable city staff options
effort to make accompanying staff reports	that have been discussed, but were not recommended by the City Manager or
available at this time.	Department staff; (b). a brief description of the reasons the alternative was rejected,
	(c). a cost-benefit analysis and economic impact report to include, but not limited to, the following: how the expenditure aligns with and affects the City's policy goals, fiscal
	priorities, long term strategy, and economic development goals and priorities.
	Require every Staff memo to have a City staff contact for public questions.
C. A description is meaningful if it is sufficiently	San Francisco's ordinance is identical. (Section 67.7(b).)

<u>Pr</u>	rovision_	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
	clear and specific to alert a person of average intelligence and education whose interests are affected by the item that he or she may have reason to attend the meeting or seek more information on the item. The description should be brief, concise and written in plain, easily understood English. It shall refer to any explanatory documents that have been provided to the policy body in connection with an agenda item, such as correspondence or reports, and such documents shall be posted adjacent to the agenda or, if such documents are of more than one page in length, made available for public inspection and copying at a location indicated on the agenda during normal office hours.	No other ordinances have any similar provision.
D.	The agenda shall specify the time and location of the regular meeting and shall be posted at locations that are freely accessible to members of the public.	San Francisco's ordinance is identical. (Section 67.7(c).)
E.	No action or discussion shall be undertaken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that members of a policy body may respond to statements made or questions posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights, to the extent of asking a question for clarification, providing a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, or requesting staff to report back to the body at a subsequent	San Francisco's ordinance is identical. (Section 67.7(d).) Oakland and Benicia provide that if an item appears on an agenda but the local body fails to meet any of the additional notice requirements under this section, the local body may take action only if: (1) The minimum notice requirements of the Brown Act have been met; and, (2)The local body, by a two-thirds vote of those members present, adopts a motion determining that, upon consideration of the facts and circumstances, it was not reasonably possible to meet the additional notice requirements under this section and any one of the following exists: (a) the need to take immediate action on the item is

Pr	<u>ovision</u>	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
	meeting concerning the matter raised by such testimony.	required to avoid a substantial adverse impact that would occur if the action were deferred to a subsequent special or regular meeting; (b) there is a need to take immediate action which relates to federal or state legislation or the local body's eligibility for any grant or gift; or, (c) the item relates to a purely ceremonial or commendatory action. (Oakland Sunshine Ordinance Section 2.20.080(D); Benicia Sunshine Ordinance Section 4.08.050(C).)
F.	Notwithstanding subdivision (E), the policy body may take action on items of business not appearing on the posted agenda under any of	San Francisco's ordinance is identical. (Section 67.7(e).) Oakland and Benicia provide that a local body may take action on items not appearing on a
	the following conditions:	posted agenda only under the circumstances specified below. (Oakland Sunshine Ordinance Section 2.20.080(E); Benicia Sunshine Ordinance Section 4.08.050(D).)
1.	Upon a determination by a majority vote of the body that an accident, natural disaster or work force disruption poses a threat to public health and safety.	San Francisco's ordinance is identical. (Section 67.7(e)(1).) Oakland and Benicia provide: The matter is an emergency. Upon a determination by a majority vote of the local body that a work stoppage, crippling disaster or other activity exits which severely impairs public health, safety or both. (Oakland Sunshine Ordinance Section 2.20.080(E)(1); Benicia Sunshine Ordinance Section 4.08.050(D)(1).)
2.	Upon a good faith, reasonable determination by a two-thirds vote of the body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous vote of those members present, that (a) the need to take immediate action on the item is so imperative as to threaten serious injury to the public interest if action were deferred to a subsequent special or regular meeting, or relates to a purely commendatory action, and (b) that	San Francisco's ordinance is identical. (Section 67.7(e)(2).) Contra Costa provides that a policy body may, by a 3/4 vote, waive the time limits when, in its judgment, it is essential to do so, providing that the County Administrator, appropriate Department Head or staff member furnishes to the Board of Supervisors or other policy body a written explanation as to why the material could not be provided to the Board or other policy body and the general public within the above time limits. (Section 25-2.206(a).)
	the need for such action came to the attention of the body subsequent to the agenda being	Oakland and Benicia provide: The matter is urgent and upon a determination by a two- thirds vote by the members of the local body present at the meeting, or, if less than two-

<u>Pr</u>	rovision	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
	posted as specified in subdivision (A).	thirds of the members are present, a unanimous vote of those present, that there is a need to take immediate action which came to the attention of the local body after the agenda was posted, and that the need to take immediate action: (a) is required to avoid a substantial adverse impact that would occur if the action were deferred to a subsequent special or regular meeting; (b) relates to federal or state legislation; or, (c) relates to a purely ceremonial or commendatory action. (Oakland Sunshine Ordinance Section 2.20.080(E)(2); Benicia Sunshine Ordinance Section 4.08.050(D)(2).)
3.	The item was on an agenda posted pursuant to subdivision (A) for a prior meeting of the body occurring not more than five calendar days prior to the date action is taken on the item, and at the prior meeting the item was continued to the meeting at which action is being taken.	San Francisco's ordinance is identical. (Section 67.7(e)(3).) Contra Costa permits 24 hours notice when the agenda item has been added to the agenda at a previous meeting of the policy body not more than seven days prior to the scheduled meeting. (Section 25-2.206(a).)
G.	Each policy body shall ensure that notices and agendas for regular and special meetings shall include the following notice: KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE OPEN GOVERNMENT ORDINANCE Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review.	San Francisco's ordinance is substantially identical. (Section 67.7(g).) San Jose does not have an "open government commission".

<u>Pr</u>	<u>ovision</u>	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
H.	Each agenda of a policy body covered by this Open Government Ordinance shall include the address, area code and phone number, fax number, e-mail address, and contact person for the Open Government Commission. Information on how to obtain a free copy of the Open Government Ordinance shall be included on each agenda.	San Francisco's ordinance is substantially identical. (Section 67.7(h).)
	Notice Requirements ontent from San Francisco Ord., Section 67.7-1)	Milpitas and San Francisco have virtually the same provisions (Milpitas, Section, I-310-2.30 and San Francisco, Section 67.7-1)
_	Any public notice that is mailed, posted or published by a City department, board, agency or commission to residents residing within a specific area to inform those residents of a matter that may impact their property or that neighborhood area, shall be brief, concise and written in plain, easily understood English.	Oakland, Milpitas and Benicia provide similar provisions for public hearing and/or agenda postings. Oakland, Section, 2.20.030 (A); Milpitas, Section, I-310-2.30 (A); Benicia Section 4.08.120 (A).
B.	The notice should inform the residents of the proposal or planned activity, the length of time planned for the activity, the effect of the proposal or activity, and a telephone contact for residents who have questions.	Milpitas has the same provision (Milpitas, Section 4.08.120 (B).) Benicia provides similar requirements for agendas.
C.	If the notice informs the public of a public meeting or hearing, then the notice shall state that persons who are unable to attend the public meeting or hearing may submit to the City, by the time the proceeding begins, written comments regarding the subject of the meeting or hearing, that these	Milpitas has the same provision. Milpitas, Section, I-310-2.30 (C)

Provision	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
comments will be made a part of the official public record, and that the comments will be brought to the attention of the person or persons conducting the public meeting or hearing. The notice should also state the name and address of the person or persons to whom those written comments should be submitted.	
2.8 Special Meetings	
A. Special meetings of any local body may be called at any time by the presiding officer thereof or by a majority of the members thereof. All local bodies calling a special meeting shall provide notice by: 1. posting a copy of the agenda in a location freely accessible to the public at least 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the time of the meeting set	Milpitas has the following provisions: 1. that notices and agendas for regular and special meetings shall include the following notice: KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE OPEN GOVERNMENT ORDINANCE Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. (Sec 1-310-2.30-3g) 2. In the case of closed session special meetings, the statement shall be made in the form of the agenda disclosures and specifications required by Section I-310-2.60 (Sec 3.310-2.100).
forth in the agenda;	SF has a provision for holding special meetings in alternate places in the case of an emergency. The change of meeting site shall be announced, by the most rapid means of communication available at the time, in a notice to the local media who have requested written notice of special meetings pursuant to Government Code Section 54956. Reasonable attempts shall be made to contact others regarding the change in meeting location. (Sec 67.6d) Additionally, they have a provision that a notice of a special meeting shall be delivered personally, or by mail, e-mail, or facsimile, at least 72 hrs before said meeting. (Sec 67.6.f) Agendas for regular and special meetings are made available to speech and hearing impaired persons through telecommunications devices for the deaf,

<u>Provision</u>	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
	telecommunications relay services or equivalent systems, and, upon request, to sight impaired persons through Braille or enlarged type.
	Benicia has a provision addressing notice and agenda requirements for Special Meetings: posting agenda in a location freely accessible to public at least 72 hrs prior to meeting (Sec 4.08.060). Benicia also has provisions for emergency (dire situations) meetings: legislative body may hold an emergency meeting without complying with either the 24-hour notice requirement or the 24-hr posting requirement (Sec 4.08.030 (1b1).
	Contra Costa County does not include provisions that specifically address Special Meetings. Presumably the requirements of the Brown Act would apply.
	Current Practice (2.8.A)
	Consistent with Council Resolution 73321 Council Rules of Conduct. A special meeting of the Council may be called at any time by the Mayor or majority of the Council in accordance with the Brown Act.
2. filing a copy of the agenda and copies of all agenda-related material in the Office of the City Clerk at least 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the time of the	Benicia requires filing a copy of the agenda with the Office of the City Clerk 48 hours prior to a special meeting; delivering copy of agenda to local newspapers at least 24 hrs prior; posting agenda on web site 72 hrs prior to meeting. (Sec 4.08.060)
meeting set forth in the agenda; and, delivering a copy of the agenda to each member of the local body, to each local newspaper of general circulation, to each agenda subscriber, and to each media organization which has previously	San Francisco, Contra Costa and Milpitas do not have this provision.
requested notice in writing, so that a copy of the agenda is received at least 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays)	

Pr	rovision	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
	before the time of the meeting set forth in the agenda. Receipt of the agenda shall be presumed upon reasonable proof that delivery was made.	
В.	Policy bodies specified in Section 2.2 shall, in addition to the noticing requirements of this section, post a copy of the agenda for any special meeting on-line at the local body's website at least 48 hours (excluding Saturdays,	See Benicia Sec 4.08.060-3b; similar wording. Benicia states that all agendas shall be posted on the cities web site and the city's cable channel and available at the Benicia Public Library (Sec 4.08.070) San Francisco, Milpitas, Contra Costa County, do not have this provision.
	Sundays and holidays) before the time of the meeting set forth in the agenda. Failure to timely post a copy of the agenda online because of software or hardware failure shall not constitute a defect in the notice for a special meeting if	
	the local body complies with all other posting and noticing requirements.	
C.	No business other than that set forth in the agenda shall be considered at a special meeting. Each special meeting shall be held at the regular meeting place of the local body except that the local body may designate an alternative meeting location provided that such alternative location is specified in the agenda and that notice pursuant to this Section is given at least ten (10) days prior to the special meeting. This ten (10) day notice requirement shall not apply if the alternative location is within the same building at which regular meetings of	See Benicia Sec 4.08.060-3c; similar wording.

<u>Pr</u>	<u>ovision</u>	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
	the local body occur.	
D.	To the extent practicable, the presiding officer or the majority of members of any local body may cancel a special meeting by delivering	See Benicia Sec 4.08.060-3d; similar wording.
	notice of cancellation in the same manner and to the same persons as required for the notice of such meeting.	Current Practice Council Resolution 73321 Council Rules of Conduct indicates any meeting of the Council may be cancelled in advance by a majority of Council. The Mayor may cancel a meeting in the case of an emergency or when a majority of members have confirmed in writing their unavailability to attend.
E.	Special meetings may not be noticed on the same day as a previously scheduled regular meeting that was not noticed in compliance with this ordinance if the special meeting is called to consider any of the items that were included in the notice for such regular meeting	See Benicia Sec 4.08.060-3e; similar wording.
	Barriers to Attendance Prohibited ontent from Milpitas Ord., Section I-310-2.120)	
	No policy body shall conduct any meeting, conference or other function in any facility that excludes persons on the basis of actual or presumed class identity or characteristics, or which is inaccessible to persons with physical disabilities, or where members of the public may not be present without making a payment or purchase. Whenever the City Council, a board or commission, or any committee thereof anticipates that the number of persons attending the meeting will exceed the legal capacity of the meeting room, any	San Francisco has similar wording vis-à-vis physical disabilities. It also contains additional provisions for persons with severe allergies, environmental illnesses, etc; has provisions for providing translators & sign language translators. (Sec. 67.13.a-d) Benicia has similar wording vis-à-vis physical disabilities. (Sec 4.08.080) Contra Costa has similar wording (Sec. 25-2.602) Oakland has similar wording. (Sec 2.20.140)

Provision	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
public address system used to amplify sound in the meeting room shall be extended by supplementary speakers to permit the overflow audience to listen to the proceedings in an adjacent room or passageway, unless such supplementary speakers would disrupt the operation of a City office. B. Each policy body that meets in City Hall and televises its meetings, shall provide for participation by members of the public via telephone "bridge"	There is no similar provision in the Benicia, San Francisco, Oakland, Contra Costa ordinances.
lines" for public comment on each item in the same manner as if the member of the public were in actual physical attendance at the meeting. Each policy body subject to this provision may develop reasonable procedures for its implementation. 2.10 Recording and Photography	
(Content from Milpitas Ord., Section I-310-2.130) A. Any person attending an open and public meeting of a policy body shall have the right to record the	San Francisco, Benicia, Oakland, and Contra Costa all have provisions to allow recording, photography and broadcast of public proceedings.
proceedings with an audio or video recorder or a still or motion picture camera, or to broadcast the proceedings, in the absence of a reasonable finding of the policy body that the recording or broadcast cannot continue without such noise, illumination or obstruction of view as to constitute a persistent disruption of the proceedings.	Reform Referral City Council approved adding to the Taskforce Work Plan a discussion of what is filmed and archived on the City's television station (i.e. Planning, Commission, other committees). May 23, 2006, Council Meeting, Item 3.4, Meeting Synopsis.
B. All policy bodies shall audio record each regular and special meeting. Each such audio recording,	Oakland has this provision (Sec 2.20.160b) Benicia has this provision (Sec 4.08.080)

<u>P</u>	rovision	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals	
	and any audio or video recording of a meeting of any other policy body made at the direction of the policy body shall be a public record subject to inspection pursuant to the California Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250 et seq.), and shall not be erased or destroyed. The audio and/or video record shall be kept indefinitely or as current technology allows. Inspection of any such recording shall be provided without charge on an appropriate play back device made available by the City. Audio records of audio taped meetings shall be provided upon request and payment for the actual cost of the recording. Requests shall be made through the City Clerk.	San Francisco has this provision (Sec 67.14b)	
	2.11 Public Testimony (Content from Milpitas Ord., Section I-310-2.140)		
_	Every agenda for regular meetings shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to directly address a policy body on any item, provided that no action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by Section I-310-2.30(e) of this chapter.	San Francisco, Oakland, Milpitas, and Benicia contain similar/same provision.	
	Every agenda for meetings at which action is proposed to be taken on an item shall provide an opportunity for each member of the public to directly address the body concerning that item prior to action thereupon. Each policy body shall adopt a rule providing	San Francisco, Oakland, Milpitas, and Benicia contain similar/same provision. The San Francisco, Oakland, and Milpitas provisions regarding public testimony are	

<u>Provision</u>	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
that each person wishing to speak on an item before the body at a regular or special meeting shall be permitted to be heard once for a maximum of three minutes. However, the Chair	substantially the same as the Brown Act. In these three jurisdictions, the speakers could have either 2 or 3 minutes during public comment for an item and this time limit was required to be applied <u>uniformly</u> for all speakers.
of the meeting has discretion to reduce the speaking time in situations where there are a large number of persons who wish to speak on a particular agenda item. Time limits shall be applied uniformly to members of the public wishing to testify. The Chair of the policy body shall accept public testimony in a fair and evenhanded way, without manipulation in the order of speakers. In Milpitas, the Council may reduce the am are a large number of speakers. In Benicia, the speaker has 5 minutes on a group could designate a spokesperson and their side with 5 minutes for rebuttal. A speaminutes if speaking on multiple items. Current Practice The Council Conduct Resolution gives the practice is 2 minutes. Reform Referrals (Neighborhood Particient Expand the speaking time from 2 minutes to Community Association Designees**** (City eminent domain action, clarify the speaking advisory commissions, and create a strategent to contact the speaking time from 2 minutes to Community Association Designees****	In Oakland, the Council could give the speaker additional time if he or she wishes to speak on multiple items.
	In Milpitas, the Council may reduce the amount of time per speaker from 3 minutes if there are a large number of speakers.
	In Benicia, the speaker has 5 minutes on any item. If a group had the same views, the group could designate a spokesperson and the spokesperson had 15 minutes to present their side with 5 minutes for rebuttal. A speaker on multiple items may also have up to 10 minutes if speaking on multiple items.
	The Council Conduct Resolution gives the Mayor the discretion to set the time limits. Current
	Reform Referrals (Neighborhood Participation Reform #4) Expand the speaking time from 2 minutes to 4 minutes for "Neighborhood Group" or Community Association Designees**" (City Council Policy 6-30) or those subject to an eminent domain action, clarify the speaking time allowed to a representative from an advisory commissions, and create a strategy to address recently identified challenges to public participation for those with disabilities.
D. A policy body shall not abridge or prohibit public criticism of the policy, procedures, programs or services of the City, or of any other	San Francisco, Oakland, Milpitas, Contra Costa County, and Benicia contain similar/same provision.

Provision	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
aspect of its proposals or activities, or of the acts or omissions of the body, on the basis that the performance of one or more public employees is implicated, or on any basis other than reasonable time constraints adopted in regulations pursuant to subdivision (c) of this section.	
E. To facilitate public input, any agenda changes or continuances shall be announced by the presiding officer of a policy body at the beginning of a meeting, or as soon thereafter as the change or continuance becomes known to such presiding officer.	San Francisco and Milpitas have similar/same provision. Oakland, Contra Costa, and Benicia do not have a provision that speaks to this issue.
2.12 Minutes (Content from Milpitas Ord., Section San Francisco, Section 67.16)	
A. The clerk or secretary of each board and commission enumerated in the charter shall record the minutes for each regular and special meeting of the board or commission. The minutes shall state the time the meeting was called to order, the names of the members attending the meeting, the roll call vote on each matter considered at the meeting, the time the board or commission began and ended any closed session, the names of the members and the names, and titles where applicable, of any other persons attending any closed session, a list of those members of the	In Milpitas and Oakland, the meetings are recorded and draft minutes are available for inspection or copying upon request within 10 working days after the meeting. In Benicia, no time is specified for draft minutes except "within the shortest possible time after the meeting." In Milpitas, the officially adopted minutes are available for inspection or copying 10 business days after the meeting the minutes are adopted. In Oakland and Benicia, the officially adopted minutes are available within 5 business days after the meeting when the minutes are adopted Current Practice The City records, in the minutes, the attendance and business transactions for each item in an action minute format (i.e. summary of action taken). For a complete record of what transpired on any item, the City currently makes available on-line videos of all City council

<u>Provision</u>	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
public who spoke on each matter if the speakers identified themselves, whether such speakers supported or opposed the matter, a brief summary of each person's statement during the public comment period for each agenda item, and the time the meeting was adjourned. Any person speaking during a public comment period may supply a brief written summary of their comments which shall, if no more than 150 words, be included in the minutes.	meetings, including Council Committees and study sessions. Reform Referral City Council and committee meeting minutes must more accurately reflect the actual meeting discussions and public meeting videos should be immediately available after the meeting on the city web and for off site meetings or technical reasons not later than 3 days after the meeting.
B. The draft minutes of each meeting shall be available for inspection and copying upon request no later than ten working days after the meeting. The officially adopted minutes shall be available for inspection and copying upon request no later than ten working days after the meeting at which the minutes are adopted. Upon request, minutes required to be produced by this section shall be made available in Braille or increased type size.	San Francisco appears to be the only jurisdictions that would make available, upon request the minutes in Braille or increased type size.
2.13 Public Comment by Members of Policy Bodies (Content from Milpitas Ord., Section San Francisco, Section 67.17)	
Every member of a policy body retains the full constitutional rights of a citizen to comment publicly on the wisdom or propriety of government actions, including those of the policy body of which he or she is a member. Policy bodies shall not sanction, reprove or	San Francisco, Oakland, Milpitas, and Contra Costa County have the same provision allowing any member of a policy body to express their views and prohibitions regarding certain privilege information.

Provision	Comparison of other Ordinances, City of San Jose practice, and Related Council Reform Referrals
deprive members of their rights as elected or appointed officials for expressing their judgments or	
opinions, including those which deal with the perceived	
inconsistency of non-public discussions,	
communications or actions with the requirements of	
state or federal law or of this ordinance. The release of	
specific factual information made confidential by state	
or federal law including, but not limited to, the privilege for confidential attorney-client communications, may be	
the basis for .a request for injunctive or declaratory	
relief, of a complaint to the Mayor seeking an	
accusation of misconduct, or both.	
2.14 Conflict Disclosures	
(Content from Milpitas Ord. Section I-310-2.180)	
At the beginning of each City Council meeting or	Aside from Milpitas, the other jurisdictions do not have a conflict disclosure provision in their
upon the arrival of the Mayor or Councilmember, the	sunshine ordinance.
City Attorney shall ask the Mayor and each member of the City Council to disclose any financial or	State Law requires disclosure at the dais and that the disclosure is recorded in the official
personal conflict with any item on the City Council's	minutes.
agenda. Pursuant to Government Code section	minutes.
87105, if the Mayor or a Councilmember discloses	Current Practice
that such a personal financial interest is present, he	Councilmember's excuse themselves on dais before item heard.
or she shall publicly identify the conflict or potential	Resolution 72566: Conflict of Interest Code
conflict in detail sufficient to be understood by the	
public, and shall recuse him or herself from taking	Reform Referral (Public Information Reform #9)
action on the item if required to do so by law and leave the meeting room.	Any councilmember claiming a conflict of interest on a vote must publicly disclose the basis of the claim by filing a conflict of interest declaration with the City Attorney and City Clerk 24
leave the ineeting room.	hours prior to start of the council meeting at which the item will be heard.

Other Public Meeting Reforms

- 1. Provide an annual city-wide budget briefing followed by 4 budget hearings throughout San José, in order to encourage greater community contribution to established City priorities. Appropriate consideration shall be made to ensure that meetings are accessible to the residents of San José in relation to the time, date, and location of the hearings (Neighborhood Participation Reform #2)
- 2. Require the City Council and Redevelopment Agency to hold Public Priority Setting Hearings in the beginning of odd years to coincide with City Councilmember appointments to standing committees (Neighborhood Participation Reform #3)



Public Meetings Reform Proposals Submitted by Councilmembers and Members of the Public

2.1 Definition

1. Seriatim meetings prohibited, including: telephone; electronic communications; 3rd parties; etc. (*Dave Parker, June 14, 2006*)

2.2 Meetings to be Open and Public: Application of Brown Act

1. Prohibit closed door meetings for city task forces, commissions and committees. (Councilmember Reed, March 13, 2006)

2.3 Time and Place for Meetings of Policy Bodies

No proposals received

2.4 Notice and Agenda Requirements

- 1. Prohibit late staff memos so that the public can have a better opportunity to respond to proposals and fully participate in the debate. (Councilmember Reed, March 13, 2006)
- 2. Prohibit the city council from voting on any issue if staff reports are not released at least six days before a council meeting to provide citizens a greater opportunity to respond before a final vote is cast. (Councilmember Cortese, June 13, 2006)
- 3. A 72 hour notice for all meetings, including agenda topics. Disallow any new documents or related matters from being introduced less than 72 hours from the meeting. All materials to be used in the consideration at a meeting will be on file with the Clerk's office or on-line. (David Parker, June 14, 2006)
- 4. The best ways to increase public input and participation is to require more advanced notice for all meetings, hearings, and other similar procedures. The current rules do not give the public adequate time to review materials and attend meetings. Public hearing agendas should be announced at least seven days prior to the meeting (longer for complex issues and those with EIRs, Air Quality studies, or other complex materials are involved. These types of documents can take weeks to read and understand, even for a trained expert. The general public needs even more time. (Bob Mack, August 30, 2006)
- 5. This should apply to the Council, all departments, agencies, commissions, and committees. At the time the agenda is published all background materials (reports, prior meeting or hearing minutes, staff and consultant recommendations, etc.) should be made available. These background items

- should be made available as soon as they are typed, or completed. (Bob Mack, August 30, 2006)
- 6. It also requires that meeting agendas are not so over loading that meetings run until late at night, when most people have to leave to go home. It may mean that two meetings are required rather than one to cover all items. It also may mean that city staff work schedules be altered so staff can attend meetings without overtime. (Bob Mack, August 30, 2006)
- 7. At least 72 hours before a regular meeting, a policy body shall post an agenda containing a meaningful description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting. Agendas shall specify for each item of business the proposed action or a statement the item is for discussion only. In addition, a policy body shall post a current agenda on its Internet site at least 72 hours before a regular meeting. (David Parker, August 31, 2006)
- 8. A description is meaningful if it is sufficiently clear and specific to alert a person of average intelligence and education whose interests are affected by the item that he or she may have reason to attend the meeting or seek more information on the item. The description should be brief, concise and written in plain, easily understood English. It shall refer to any explanatory documents that have been provided to the policy body in connection with an agenda item, such as correspondence or reports, and such documents shall be posted adjacent to the agenda or, if such documents are of more than one page in length, made available for public inspection and copying at a location indicated on the agenda during normal office hours. (David Parker, August 31, 2006)
- 9. The agenda shall specify the time and location of the regular meeting and shall be posted at the main public library, in the branch libraries and in a location that is freely accessible to members of the public. The requirement that a policy body post copies of its agendas at the branch libraries is satisfied if the branch library has a computer accessible to the public upon which members of the public may access the City's website to search for agendas of meetings of City policy bodies. (David Parker, August 31, 2006)
- 10. No action or discussion shall be undertaken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that members of a policy body may respond to statements made or questions posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights, to the extent of asking a question for clarification, providing a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, or requesting staff to report back to the body at a subsequent meeting concerning the matter raised by such testimony.
 - a. Notwithstanding subdivision , the policy body may take action on items of business not appearing on the posted agenda under any of the following conditions:
 - b. Upon a determination by a majority vote of the body that an accident, natural disaster or work force disruption poses a threat to public health and safety.
 - c. Upon a good faith, reasonable determination by a two-thirds vote of the body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous vote of those members present, that (A) the need to take immediate action on the item is so imperative as to threaten serious injury to the public interest if action were deferred to a subsequent special or regular meeting, or relates to a purely commendatory action, and (B) that the need for such action came to the attention of the body subsequent to the agenda being posted. The item was on an agenda posted for a prior meeting of the body occurring not more

than five calendar days prior to the date action is taken on the item, and at the prior meeting the item was continued to the meeting at which action is being taken. (David Parker, August 31, 2006)

- 11. Agendas of meetings, meeting packets, or documents created by a department. and any other documents on file with the clerk or secretary of the policy body, in connection with a matter anticipated for discussion or consideration at a public meeting shall be made available to the public for inspection and copying at the office of the policy body at least 48 hours before the hearing and be available to the public in sufficient quantities at the hearing commensurate with the anticipated number of people attending the hearing. If any document being acted upon by the policy body at a meeting is not available at least 48 hours before the meeting and a member of the policy body requests that the matter be continued, the policy body must continue the item to a time not less than 48 hours after the document was made available. Nothing in this subsection shall prohibit the policy body from amending a document at a meeting. The materials that are distributed at the hearing shall be of such a quality that a person with 20/20 vision would have no difficulty reading them. To the extent possible, such documents shall also be made available through the policy body's Internet site. However, this disclosure need not include any material exempt from public disclosure under this ordinance. (David Parker, August 31, 2006)
- 12. Prohibit multiple members of the City Council from signing on to memorandums that are distributed before the day of the Council meeting in question. (Councilmember Cortese, August 31, 2006)
- 13. A cost-benefit analysis must be provided for all projects, activities, and events that seek a public subsidy. The analysis must be provided for public review (online) two weeks in advance of the city council vote. An after-action audit must be performed on all projects, activities, and events that receive a public subsidy in excess of \$25,000. (Pete Campbell, August 17, 2006)

2.5 Notice Requirements

- 1. Post notices for meetings of committees, boards, commissions and advisory bodies online in one place. (Councilmember Reed, March 13, 2006)
- 2. We formally request that any city staff generated reports analysis or educational materials that provide information in order for a committee to vote, implement a policy change, funding recommendation etc to be emailed to all interested parties at least 7 days prior to a meeting and posted on the City website for full public access. (Patricia Gardner, Silicon Valley Council of Nonprofits, August, 3, 2006)
- 3. Public comment periods for permits and other administrative procedures should be extended. Notice of permit requests (building, new business, etc.) should be sent to the entire neighborhood, not just people who live 500 or 1000 feet from a project. Most projects have an impact on much larger areas than this usually the entire zip code (if near the zip code border maybe two zip codes). (Bob Mack, August 30, 2006)

2.6 Special Meetings

1. No proposals received

2.7 Barriers to Attendance Prohibited

1. Allow for the request of interpreters, of any language, for meetings provided 48 hours notice is given to the Clerk's office. (Dave Parker, June 14, 2006)

2. All policy bodies shall seek to provide translators at each of its regular meetings and all meetings of its committees for each language requested, where the translation is necessary to enable San Jose hearing impaired residents, or those with limited English proficiency to participate in the proceedings provided that a request for such translation services is communicated to the policy body at least 48 hours before the meeting. For meetings on a Monday or a Tuesday, the request must be made by noon of the last business day of the preceding week. The policy body shall first solicit volunteers from the ranks of City employees and/or from the community to serve as translators. If volunteers are not available the policy body may next solicit translators from non-profit agencies, which may be compensated. If these options do not provide the necessary translation services, the policy body may employ professional translators. The unavailability of a translator shall not affect the ability of the policy body or its committees to deliberate or vote upon any matter presented to them. In any calendar year, if the cost to the City for providing translator services under this subsection exceeds \$20,000, the City Council shall, as soon as possible thereafter, review the provisions of this subsection. (David Parker, August 31, 2006)

2.8 Recording and Photography

1. All policy bodies shall audio record each regular and special meeting. Video recordings are ideal but not required. Each such audio recording, and any audio or video recording of a meeting of any other policy body made at the direction of the policy body shall be a public record subject to inspection pursuant to the California Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250 et seq.), and shall not be erased or destroyed and shall be retained for at least ten years, or permanently where technologically and economically feasible. The City shall retain these recordings digitally and make them available via the internet on the City's website. Inspection of any such recording shall be provided without charge on an appropriate play back device made available by the City. Requests shall be made through the department, board, commission, task force, or committee whose meeting is recorded. The City Administrator shall assist policy bodies in carrying out their duties under this subsection. (David Parker, August 31, 2006)

2.9 Public Testimony and Written Statements

- 1. Allow public comment after each agenda item. And, general public comment for items not on the agenda. Increase public comment to 3 minutes. (Dave Parker, June 14, 2006)
- 2. If the City truly wants public input and participation, more time needs to be given for the public to ask questions of the experts (consultants, staff, or others) who prepare reports about items the Council, all departments, agencies, commissions, and committees will be deciding or voting on. This requires more public time at meetings, longer advance notice of meetings and meetings scheduled at times when most people are not at work (i.e. evenings and weekends). (Bob Mack, August 30, 2006)

2.10 Minutes

1. No proposals received

2.11 Public Comment by Members of Policy Bodies

1. No proposals received

2.12 Conflict Disclosures

- 1. Require the Mayor and Councilmembers to disclose material facts before the Council takes action. (Councilmember Reed, March 13, 2006, memo)
- 2. Require the Mayor and Councilmembers to disclose any political favors or other consideration they are to get in exchange for their votes. (Councilmember Reed, March 13, 2006, memo)
- 3. Disclose all offers made to city unions for pay or benefit increases when the offers are made. (Councilmember Reed, March 13, 2006, memo)

2.13 Senior Staff Meetings Open to Public

1. No proposals received